
HS & HS/Minutes (4 October 07) - 1 - 

 
 
 

 

S O U T H  O F  M A R K E T  P R O J E C T  A R E A  C O M M I T T E E  

 1035 FOLSOM STREET •  SAN FRANCISCO, CA  •  94103 
415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 • website: http://www.sompac.com 

Advisory body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency 
 

 
HEALTH, SAFETY & HUMAN SERVICES SUBCOMMITTEE 

Tuesday October 2, 2007 
12:00 Noon 

 
Presiding Chair (12:06 PM) 
Ingrid Aquino 
 
Chair’s Report (12:06 PM) 
 
Determination of Quorum (12:06 PM) 
Present: Ingrid Aquino, John Melone/SAN and Raymon Smith  
 
Absent: John Markham, Antoinetta Stadlman, Jason Ortega and Dipak Patel  
Staff: Marcia Ban and Karen Nolan 
 
Agency:  
 
Guests: Captain Dan McDonagh/SFPD Southern Station, Andrew Harris/Rancho 
Parnassus, Charles Range/SOM Health Center, Troy Christensen and Rob Wade 
 
Approval of minutes (12:07 PM) 
Motion: “To approve the minutes of the September 2007 Health, Safety & Human 
Services Subcommittee.” 
 
Vote: Yes: 3 No: 0 Abstain: 0 Motion Passes  
  
Agenda Order (12:08 PM) 
1,,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,2 
Motion: “To approve the agenda order hearing item 2 after item 11.” 
 
Vote: Yes: 3 No: 0 Abstain: 0 Motion Passes 
  
Announcement of next Human Services Committee meeting 
The next Health, Safety & Human Services Subcommittee will meet on Tuesday 
November 6th, 2007 at 12:00 noon. 
 
Agenda Item 6. PACland Crime Matters by SFPD (12:09 PM) 
Ms. Aquino introduced herself and welcomed Captain McDonagh. She stated that we 
had a smooth relationship with Captain O’Leary in the recent past and she hopes this 
can continue with Captain McDonagh.  



HS & HS/Minutes (4 October 07) - 2 - 

 
Captain McDonagh stated that he is here to see what members have to say. This is his 
first day on the job as district captain after spending two weeks in training. Ms. Aquino 
stated that Captain O’Leary usually gave the statistics for the crime in the area as well 
as the staffing information at Southern Station. Captain McDonagh stated that there 
have been no changes in the staffing numbers at this time. Crime for this area is going 
down with the exception of larceny and petty thefts. 
 
Ms. Aquino referred to the shooting last week on Harriet Street and wondered if the 
captain could provide information on this incident. Captain McDonagh stated that this 
shooting occurred when one suspect was selling a car on Craig’s List and the other 
suspect came to purchase the car. Apparently one tried to rob the other and one suspect 
chased the other and shot him. Both have been arrested, one for attempted robbery and 
the other for the shooting. 
 
Mr. Smith wondered if Captain McDonagh could provide a report on the allocation of 
staff at the Southern Station. Captain McDonagh stated that the staffing remains the 
same as well as the beats for the district. Mr. Smith stated that over the past three 
months there has been an increase in very loud motorcycles on 6th Street during the 
weekends between midnight and 3:00 AM. He wondered if the Captain could do 
something about this. Captain McDonagh stated that he could alert the night shift and if 
someone is breaking the law they would be cited. Mr. Smith stated that there is a lot of 
activity at night in front of City Team, Chico’s Pizza, Natoma Street and Tehama Street. 
The Captain asked if Mr. Smith could be specific as to the problems. Mr. Smith stated 
that there is a lot of loud noise, fights and drug dealing. 
 
Mr. Melone stated that when he left a meeting the other night he observed the beat 
officers addressing issues at 5th and Folsom Streets. When he arrived at 5th and Market 
Streets he observed officers again and it is nice to see the officers out on the street 
doing a good job. He especially appreciates seeing the officers out on the street at night 
when he is on his way home from meetings.  
 
A member of the public stated that he started a group called “My Sustainable City” and 
there are concerns from the neighbors of groups of youth hanging out in front of Extreme 
Pizza intimidating people on the street. He spoke with the management of Extreme 
Pizza, but they tell him these youth are their customers. This member of the public 
stated that he has had conversations with Recreation Center personnel who are being 
intimidated by United Playaz. He pointed out that publicly the police say that UP is 
wonderful and then privately they say that they know there are problems with the group. 
 
Captain McDonagh referred to the intimidation and wanted to know how the youth were 
intimidating people. The member of the public stated that they are harassing people and 
selling drugs. Members of UP say that they have an MOU and can do what they want at 
the Recreation Center. They have members that have been thrown out of the group for 
drugs and gangs yet these same youth are constantly seen climbing the back fence and 
entering the Recreation Center grounds. The youth sit on the back benches smoking 
where signs are clearly posted that no smoking is allowed. He referred to a meeting 
scheduled for Thursday evening at the Recreation Center to address concerns of UP. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that he has mentioned many times that we would like beat officers to 
walk through the park. He stated that he is at the park three to four times a day and has 



HS & HS/Minutes (4 October 07) - 3 - 

not ever seen the beat officers do a walk through. Mr. Smith hopes that this will begin 
happening soon. Captain McDonagh asked what park Mr. Smith was referring to. Mr. 
Smith stated that neighbors would like to see a police presence at Victoria Manalo 
Draves Park on Folsom and Columbia Square Streets. 
 
A member of the public stated that he is happy to hear that the recent shootings were 
not gang related. There is a concern of the gang injunctions issued in other areas of the 
city pushing the gang activity to our area. 
 
A member of the public stated that they informed the Sergeant at a meeting Sunday 
night of the all day parking that occurs on Harriet Street where there is supposed to be a 
two hour limit or you must have a residential sticker. He stated that people park on 
Harriet Street all day and go up to 6th Street to buy and sell drugs. They come back late 
at night throwing all the garbage from their cars into the street and blasting their car 
stereos. This man would like to see the parking restrictions enforced. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that she works at SOMCAN and frequently speaks to Mr. Corpuz at 
UP. She stated that they recently went to city hall to protest the gang injunctions 
because the injunctions just move crime from one area to another and there are racial 
overtones to these injunctions. Captain McDonagh referred to the gang injunction in the 
Bayview and stated that with the injunction in place there has been a big decrease in the 
number of shootings. He reminded members that there are only so many tools the police 
have to use with gangs. Ms. Aquino asked about an injunction in the South of Market. 
Captain McDonagh stated that this is not an option at this time. He reminded everyone 
that the recent shootings were not gang related. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that at a previous meeting an officer gave yearly statistics of over 
800 arrests for drugs and that most of those arrested were from the East Bay. Captain 
McDonagh stated that it is a known fact that the dealers come here from the East Bay to 
sell drugs. The police work with the District Attorney’s Office to make arrests and 
prosecute these dealers so that it will not be worthwhile for them to come here to sell 
drugs. 
 
Mr. Smith wanted to know if sometime within the next five days we could have a report 
on gang activity in this area. Captain McDonagh stated that he would request an officer 
from the gang task force to attend next month’s meeting.  
 
Ms. Aquino stated that about eight months ago a probation officer was assigned to this 
area to deal with the registered sex offenders and she wanted to know if they are still 
doing this and if these sex offenders are required to wear ankle bracelets for monitoring. 
Captain McDonagh stated that officers do go out to check on the registered sex 
offenders to see if they are in fact living at the address provided to the police, but he 
does not know about the guidelines or whether or not they must wear ankle bracelets.  
 
Agenda Item 7. Alleyway Improvements Update by Cathy Pickering (12:42 PM) 
Skipped due to Ms. Pickering’s absence. 
 
Agenda Item 8. Follow-Up on Hanging Flower Baskets on Sixth Street by Cathy 
Pickering (12:42 PM) 
Skipped due to Ms. Pickering’s absence. 
 



HS & HS/Minutes (4 October 07) - 4 - 

Agenda Item 9. Follow-Up on Trash Receptacles on Sixth Street by Cathy 
Pickering (12:42 PM) 
Skipped due to Ms. Pickering’s absence. 
 
Agenda Item 10. Follow-Up on Off Leash Dogs in VMD Park by Ingrid Aquino 
(12:43 PM) 
Ms. Aquino referred to the off leash dogs at Victoria Manalo Draves Park and 
announced that according to the law, dogs must be leashed at the park. There are signs 
posted at all entrances informing the neighbors of this rule. Ms. Aquino reminded 
everyone that Mr. Cismowski informed us last month that the Recreation & Parks 
Department would be hiring more park rangers. If the park rangers see someone with an 
off leash dog, they can be cited. Ms. Aquino requested that everyone keep their dogs 
leashed at the park because there are many children at the park who are fearful of dogs. 

 
Mr. Smith announced that he was recently asked to join a group of dog owners in the 
neighborhood to see if a place could be found for a dog run. He reminded everyone that 
this is a sensitive issue and we must find a balance. 
 
A member of the public stated that he uses the park several times a day for several 
hours and there are over 80 dog owners in this neighborhood. He stated that he 
understands the concern for children and people must put their dog on a leash 
immediately when a child comes. He has been meeting with parents and their children to 
deal with concerns people might have. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that this is fine, but the dogs must be leashed. This member of the 
public stated that he understands the issue and the dog owners are trying to find a place 
for the dogs. He has phoned the Recreation Department and the Dog Advisory 
Committee several times, but his calls are not returned. The neighbors are trying to work 
on solutions and have started a Yahoo group and have begun distributing cards showing 
the places that dogs are not allowed as well as common courtesies that dog owners 
should follow as responsible pet owners. The group makes sure to inform others that 
dogs are not allowed in the children’s play areas or on the field. They are hoping that the 
city can purchase the vacant car wash lot at 6th and Harrison Streets for a dog park. 
 
A member of the public stated that the dog owners try to be responsible and respectful, 
especially of the children. Most people do not bring their dogs to the park during the day 
time hours when the children are at the park. They bring the dogs to the park in the 
evening hours when most children have gone home. 
 
A member of the public stated that most dog owners come to the park between 5:00 and 
7:00 PM when not many children are there. The dogs are kept on the mound and if 
children come and any concerns are raised, the dogs are leashed. These issues are all 
a work in progress at this time, but people are trying to work together and police each 
other. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that since the dog owner group formed there has been a big 
turnaround and a great deal of discussion around the concerns and the need for the 
dogs to exercise. 
 
A member of the public stated that most dog owners can’t make the monthly park clean-
up day so they have begun their own park clean-up on Thursday evenings and most do 



HS & HS/Minutes (4 October 07) - 5 - 

regular clean-ups every day. The dog owners have reviewed the dog policy of the city 
and follow all of the guidelines with the exception of off leash dogs on the grass mound. 
 
Mr. Range stated that the general public is concerned with sanitation at the park. He 
stated that aside from the dog feces, you could not clean the urine. In looking at 
changing the guidelines, the group should look at other areas for the dogs. 
 
Mr. Melone stated that he was at the park recently and saw no less than 20 people 
picking up dog mess. The only problem he saw was a couple of dogs urinating on the 
flowers and this is not good. Mr. Smith would like to see everyone walk their dogs for 
biological needs before bringing them to the park. This would solve a lot of the problem. 
 
A member of the public stated that he came to this meeting today because he heard that 
there were concerns regarding dogs at the park. He will send an e-mail to the group 
requesting that everyone walk their dogs before they bring them to the park. 

 
Agenda Item 11. Committee Member Announcements (1:05 PM)  
Ms. Aquino announced that SOMAfest has been rescheduled to this Saturday, October 
6th from 10:00 AM to 4:00 PM at Victoria Manalo Draves Park. 
 
Agenda Item 2. Chair’s Report 
Ms. Aquino announced that she attended the alley streetscape charrette. She stated 
that a new neighborhood watch group has formed. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that she spoke to Ms. Olivas and was told that Ms. Chan will have a 
youth center report soon. Ms. Aquino informed everyone that she is a paid intern at 
SOMCAN until October 31st. 
 
Public Comment (1: 08PM) 
 
 
Meeting Ended (1:09 PM) 

 
Ingrid Aquino 

Chair 


